
For any apologies or requests for further information, or to give notice of a question to be 
asked by a member of the public  
Contact:  Mark Nedderman  
Tel: 01270 686459 
E-Mail: mark.nedderman@cheshireeast.gov.uk  

 

Corporate Scrutiny Committee 
 

Agenda 
 

Date: Tuesday, 4th October, 2011 
Time: 2.00 pm 
Venue: Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road, 

Sandbach CW11 1HZ 
 
The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. 
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons 
indicated on the agenda and at the foot of each report. 
 
PART 1 – MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT 
 
1. Apologies for Absence   
 
2. Minutes of Previous Meeting  (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
3. Declarations of Interest   
 
 To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any personal and/or 

prejudicial interests and for members to declare the existence of a party whip in relation to 
any item on the agenda.  
 
 

4. Public Speaking Time/Open Session   
 
 A total period of 15 minutes is allocated for members of the public to make a statement(s) on 

any matter that falls within the remit of the Committee. 
  
Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 minutes, but the Chairman will decide 
how the period of time allocated for public speaking will be apportioned, where there are a 
number of speakers. 
 
Note: In order for officers to undertake any background research, it would be helpful if 
members of the public contacted the Scrutiny officer listed at the foot of the agenda, at least 
one working day before the meeting to provide brief details of the matter to be covered.  
 
 

Public Document Pack



5. Procurement update  (Pages 5 - 32) 
 
 To receive a presentation from Lisa Quinn, Director of Finance and Business Services. A 

summary sheet and a copy of the Cheshire East Procurement Strategy are enclosed. 
 

6. Work Programme Progress Report  (Pages 33 - 38) 
 
 To consider a report of the Borough Solicitor. 

 
7. Forward Plan - Extracts  (Pages 39 - 44) 
 
 To note the current forward plan, identify any new items, and to determine whether any 

further examination of new issues is appropriate. 
 



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee 
held on Friday, 2nd September, 2011 at Council Chamber, Municipal 

Buildings, Earle Street, Crewe CW1 2BJ 
 

PRESENT 
 
Councillor J P Findlow (Chairman) 
Councillor D Newton (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillors G Barton, G Baxendale, B Burkhill, S Corcoran, W S Davies and 
G Morris 
 

Apologies 
 

Councillors B Moran, D Topping and R Fletcher 
 

126 OFFICERS PRESENT  
 
Lisa Quinn - Director of Finance and Business Services. 
Mark Nedderman – Senior Scrutiny Officer. 
 

127 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 12 July 2011 be 
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
 

128 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest.  
 

129 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION  
 
There were no members of the public present who wished to speak. 
 

130 QUARTER ONE BUDGET MONITORING REPORT  
 
The Committee considered a joint report of the Director of Finance and Business 
Services and Head of Policy and Performance containing a summary and 
detailed information about the Council’s financial and non financial performance 
during the first quarter 2011/2012. 
 
In summary, the quarter one position was as follows: 
 

• Services were forecasting a £5.7 million against their budgets, after taking 
into account requests for fully funded supplementary revenue estimates 

• Around £3.6 million of this figure could be mitigated by unallocated 
contingencies, capital financing under spend, and surplus grants. 

Agenda Item 2Page 1



• Services would seek to identify further remedial actions to address a net 
£2.1million budget shortfall. 

• It was estimated that the general reserves at March 2012 would be 
approximately £18million 

• There were risks that a substantial number of savings proposals included 
in the 2011-12 budget would not be fully achieved. 

• The forecasted variance in capital programme of £18 million was largely 
explained by slippage, with costs being re-phased over future years. 

• Debt was broadly in line with the position at the end of the 2010/2011 
financial year 

• 10 measures out of a basket of 10 from the retained former statutory 
indicators were performing on or above target. 

 
Members of the Committee questioned the Director of Finance and Business 
services and Head of policy and Performance on the contents of the report and 
made the following recommendations. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
(a) That the committee believes that it is imperative that Cabinet takes early 

intervention measures to address the projected overspends highlighted 
in the quarter one budget report and accordingly, Cabinet be informed 
that whilst acknowledging that such early action will inevitably lead to 
pressures upon service delivery, the committee believes that Cabinet 
should be mindful to ensure that any remedial action taken to balance 
the budget should not have a negative impact on the quality of service 
offered to residents of Cheshire East and therefore, any actions taken 
now should include mitigating measures to avoid reductions in service. 

 
(b) That the committee has concerns about the projected reduction of car 

parking income of £227,000 which is attributed in the report to the current 
economic recessionary pressures and delays in tariff increase. The 
committee is also concerned about the projected reduction in income from 
fines of £213,000. The committee believes that this issue should be 
investigated as a matter of urgency to identify the underlying cause of the 
projected reduction in income and to investigate the anecdotal evidence 
that many car parks within the borough appear to have seen a dramatic 
decrease in use, whilst at the same time, on-street parking in town centres 
appears to have increased significantly.  

 
(c) That Cabinet be informed that this Committee is of the view that the 

importance of the asset challenge process cannot be overestimated, and 
accordingly, Cabinet should be encouraged to take measures to pursue 
this process with some vigour to ensure the Council maximises its 
potential to obtain capital receipts. 

 
(d) That the committee welcomes the option to capitalise up to £3million 

redundancy costs in 2011/12 but would not favour taking out external 
borrowing to fund this arrangement if at all possible. 

 
(e) That the committee regrets that performance information which is referred 

to in the last paragraph of section 1.5 of the report is not reported in full, 
although it is acknowledged that this information appears in the full 
cabinet report. 

Page 2



 
(f) That the committee believes that the schemes listed at paragraphs 80 and 

81, Queens Park Restoration and LTP Poynton Revitalisation Scheme 
have been treated in an inconsistent manner in that an overspend is 
envisaged in respect of transition works in the Poynton schemes and is 
deemed to be allowable, but any potential overspends in respect of 
Queens park are to be limited to only essential footpath work. 

 
(g) That the Director of Finance and Business services be requested to 

provide additional information about the Council’s policy in respect of 
interest accrued on any unspent 106 monies. 

 
(h) That the Director of Finance and Business services be requested to 

provide the committee with a fuller explanation of the enhancements paid 
to teachers relating to early retirement, pension and redundancy costs in 
paragraph 17 costing £2.3 million per annum. 

  
(i) That Director of Finance and Business services be requested to provide 

further analysis on the impact of inflation on budget setting for 2012/13. 
 
 
 

131 WORK PROGRAMME PROGRESS REPORT  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Borough Solicitor containing the 
proposed Work programme for 2011/2012. 
 
The work programme had been added to since the previous meeting of the 
Committee, following meetings held between the Chairman and Vice-Chairman 
and Leader of the Council and Procurement and Shared Services Portfolio holder 
on 1 August 2011 to reflect Cabinet priorities. 
 
RESOLVED – 
 
(a) That the report be received; 

 
(b) That the item relating to Local Highways and Local Transport/ Liaison 
Committees be deleted from the work programme; 

 
(c) That the Senior Scrutiny Officer be requested to contact His Worship the 
Mayor regarding the new work programme item concerning support for 
the Mayoralty; 

 
(d) That the Director of Finance and Business Services be requested to 
submit a report to the next meeting of the Committee on Procurement. 

 
 
 

132 TRAINING REQUIREMENTS  
 
The Senior Scrutiny Officer asked the Committee Members to consider 
training requirements for the remainder of the civic year. He informed the 
Committee that the Scrutiny Chairmen’s Group was in the process of putting 

Page 3



together a training plan, specifically for Scrutiny Members and was seeking 
suggestions to be included in a training programme. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Senior Scrutiny Officer be requested to contact New 
Members of the Council to seek their views on training requirements. 

 
 

133 FORWARD PLAN - EXTRACTS  
 
The Committee considered items listed in the current forward plan. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Forward Plan be received and noted.  
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 11.50 am 

 
Councillor J P Findlow (Chairman) 

 
 

Page 4



 
Corporate Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Procurement Update 

 

Procurement Strategy and Delivery Model 

The attached Procurement Strategy has been praised by our external inspectors and the 
Category Management approach is seen as a best practice model for the delivery of 
procurement in Local Authorities. 

http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/business/procurement/procurement_strategy.aspx 

Nevertheless we have had difficulty in gaining acceptance of this approach across the 
Authority, in establishing a strong role for the Corporate Procurement Unit and in 
developing a fully understood and embedded relationship with front line services. 

The Procurement Team has also had difficulty in trying to fully engage Services in the 
completion and ongoing maintenance of a comprehensive Contracts Register and timely 
forward plan for Procurement activity over the three year planning period. 

An independent health check conducted by NWIEP/AGMA and completed in March 2011 
recommended that we should: 

a) Review the role and structure of the Central Procurement function to develop a team 
that is adequately staffed and skilled to deliver the service required by service areas 
to ensure the Council’s significant buying power is used to maximise the social, 
economic and environmental benefits to your local communities. 

b) Undertake a skills analysis of the Procurement staff to identify any gaps where 
training is required to ensure the staff have the required commercial knowledge and 
procurement skills to fully support departments in delivering value for money in all 
procurement activities. 

c) Maximise membership in AGMA to develop detailed spend analysis and increase 
engagement in collaborative procurement opportunities and the improvement and 
efficiency programme. 

d) Produce a comprehensive central contract register covering the contracts in place 
within each individual Department.  

e) Develop a detailed Procurement Forward Plan for the next 3 years. 

f) Implement a detailed savings sheet identifying the areas targeted to deliver savings 
in each financial year for the next three years. 

 

Agenda Item 5Page 5



Current Progress: 

The Chief Executive has had high level discussions with AGMA representatives about an 
initiative to establish a ‘leading edge’ Procurement Service for AGMA, whether this be a 
Shared Service or a strategic collaboration. The initiative is in its early stages, with 4/5 
authorities expressing an interest, but Cheshire East has given a firm commitment to join 
this major project. Jackie Gray – Shared Services Manager is leading on the project for 
Cheshire East. We also have an existing commitment to the AGMA Improvement & 
Efficiency Programme as an Associate Member.  

The end to end process for Procurement is being transformed and reviewed through a 
number of mechanisms: 

• The P2P process straddles the HR & Finance Shared Service and the CE corporate 
procurement process. This is being reviewed and improved through the Business 
Management Programme. 

• The HR & Finance Shared Service, including the shared element of the P2P process, 
is part of the major Shared Service improvement programme that is likely to culminate 
in the creation of a Separate Legal Entity (SLE).   

• The Shared Service situation has been significantly rationalised further through the 
closure of CBS Supplies, the stocks and supplies service inherited from the County 
Council.    

The major update of the Contract Procedure Rules is to be re-considered by the 
Constitution Committee, to be recommended to Council, following the deferment at the last 
Council meeting. However, as an interim measure, the increase of the £50k threshold to 
£75k for the requirement to undertake the Council’s formal tender procedure was agreed. 

It must be said that the Procurement Team has made significant progress to date, such as: 

• The establishment and operation of the Procurement Board 

• The identification and operation of the Procurement Co-ordinators network across the 
authority 

• The development and implementation of the Procurement offer on centranet, including 
the Procurement Knowledge Map (links attached below) 

http://centranet.ourcheshire.cccusers.com/procurement/Pages/Procurement.aspx 

http://centranet.ourcheshire.cccusers.com/Procurement/map/Pages/default.aspx     

• The securing of major corporate contracts in partnership with corporate Service areas 
e.g. Energy, Agency, Recruitment Advertising, Mobile Phones 

• The early adoption, in partnership with the Asset Management Team, of the North 
West Construction Hub with Cheshire East using the medium and high value 

Page 6



frameworks, which deliver added value objectives such as training and 
apprenticeships 

• The establishment of a contractors panel framework for low value construction, in 
partnership with the Asset Management Team, in the main to increase the use of local 
SMEs  

• The development and implementation of the web based system Chest, which is the 
North West region’s Contract and Tender Management System 

• The development and implementation of Spend Pro, the AGMA spend and supplier 
analysis tool  

• The initiatives, in partnership with the Economic Development Team, to improve 
Cheshire East’s relationship with Local Businesses and their ability to successfully 
engage with the Council. 

Proposed Actions: 

1.1   Procure external support for: 

• The development of an effective Procurement delivery model for Cheshire East 

• The acceleration of work to fully develop Spend-Pro, the Contracts Register and the 
three-year forward plan for Cheshire East 

• The development and establishment of an AGMA shared service/collaboration as 
part of the AGMA Procurement project 

1.2 Agree the new Procurement Strategy principles and new Procurement delivery model 
with CMT and secure full buy-in to the implementation of the model. 

1.3 Work with the Extended Management Team to implement and embed the 
Procurement delivery model. 

1.4 Refresh the Council’s Procurement Strategy to be effective from the 1st April 2012 
based on the agreed principles and delivery model and also to reflect any changes in 
procurement best practice, particularly focused upon sustainable procurement. 

1.5 Re-establish the strategic Procurement Board with a new remit based on the agreed 
Procurement Strategy aims and the need to drive the delivery model across the 
Council. 

1.6 Engage the Portfolio Holder in the improvement process, the identification of the 
refreshed Cheshire East Procurement Strategy and successful implementation of the 
delivery model.   

 
 
 
Lisa Quinn – Director of Finance and Business Services

Page 7



 

Page 8



PROCUREMENT STRATEGY 

2009 – 2012 

- 1 

Page 9



CONTENTS 

Page 
Forward by Portfolio Holder Assets, Shared Services 
Procurement 

and 

Executive Summary 
SECTION 1 
Introduction 
What is Procurement? 
What is a Corporate Procurement Strategy? 
Scope 
National Drivers 
SECTION 2 
Procurement vision and objectives 
Procurement vision 
Procurement objectives 
SECTION 3 
Delivery of the Strategy 
Organisational structure of procurement 
Portfolio Holder Assets, Shared Services and Procurement 
Procurement Board 
Corporate Procurement Unit 
Procurement Coordinators 
Cheshire and Warrington Sub Regional Procurement Hub 
Procurement planning 
Procurement principles and action 
Spend analysis 
Category management 
Supplier Relationship Management 
Commissioning led procurement 
Efficiency savings plan 
Collaboration 
Contract management and the control of contracts 
E-procurement 
Sustainable procurement 
Local economy and 3rd sector 
Equality and Diversity 
Leadership 
Skills and capability 
Performance management and measurement 

- 2 

Page 10



Forward By Portfolio Holder Assets, Shared 
Services and Procurement 

Cheshire East Council recognises that effective and efficient procurement is 
key to delivering our plans. 

Our new unitary Council brings together four existing authorities and gives us 
the opportunity to deliver more efficient, high quality joined-up public services. 

We want to put the people of Cheshire East first, provide value for money and 
be locally responsive. How we decide what type of goods, works and services 
we buy, how we buy them and how the suppliers perform all impacts upon our 
partners, local businesses, the local economy and the environment. We are 
committed to supporting economic regeneration through local buying 
wherever possible. 

The Council will establish its own distinctive characteristics, priorities and 
ways of working, especially with the public, business community and 
stakeholders to create a Council of which we can all be proud. 

The Council will target our procurement resources initially on the major areas 
of spend where potential efficiencies and savings are greatest. Consideration 
will be given to economic, social and environmental impacts of our buying 
decisions. 

Cheshire East will fully participate in the newly-formed Cheshire and 
Warrington Sub-Regional Procurement Hub which will co-ordinate a joint 
approach to procurement with other authorities and organisations. 

This strategy sets out the overall direction for procurement within the new 
Cheshire East Council and I commend it to staff and partners with whom the 
Council works as a measure of commitment from the Council to achieving 
excellence in procurement. 

Councillor Peter Mason 
Portfolio holder Assets, Shared Services and Procurement 

- 3 

Page 11



Executive summary 

Welcome to the Procurement Strategy for Cheshire East Council. This 
Strategy details how procurement will be structured and managed using the 
latest strategic procurement techniques. 

Procurement, when strategically managed, can actively contribute to the 
delivery of the corporate objectives and release much needed resources to 
deliver front line services. In recent years this has been recognised by central 
government with a number of drivers advocating the adoption of modern 
innovative procurement solutions. The profile of procurement subsequently 
increased accordingly. 

Structure 

This Strategy aims to ensure that procurement is a high profile activity that the 
Cheshire East Council will undertake, as one, in a professional manner. 

A cabinet member has procurement as a portfolio responsibility and will act as 
an advocate or spokesperson on procurement matters to encourage 
communication and a positive interaction. 

A Procurement Board will be established that will have responsibility to 
oversee the implementation of this strategy, contribute to its development and 
monitor levels of compliance. 

Cheshire East Council will adopt a devolved structure of procurement with 
each service responsible for leading their own procurement activity to meet 
their specific needs. 

All services will be required to provide details of their proposed procurement 
activity as part of their service planning. Each service will identify 
Procurement Coordinators who will act as the coordinator of all strategic 
procurement activity and communication within that service. 

Cheshire East Council propose to adopt a lead role in the Cheshire and 
Warrington Sub Regional Procurement Hub. Benefits will include economies 
of scale, collaboration, increasing capacity and the targeted use of expertise. 
This will raise the profile of procurement and avail collaborative opportunities 
throughout the sub region, regionally and nationally. 

Action 

A strategic Category Management approach will be adopted where 
procurement will be based upon achieving desired outcomes. There will be a 
targeted approach to those areas where the need is greatest and where the 
opportunities for efficiencies and savings are greatest to ensure the release of 
resources. 

- 4 

Page 12



Cheshire East Council will adopt a commissioning led approach to 
procurement that will challenge the need and ensure that the needs of the 
users or business need are predominant in the procurement cycle. 

A formal approach to Supplier Relationship and Contract Management will be 
adopted to ensure compliance with contracts and that relationships are 
developed to achieve ongoing value for money, and reduce the risk of poor 
performance or non-delivery or non-availability. 

Cheshire East Council will look to embrace e-procurement where there are 
efficiency benefits to the Council including the use of e-auctions and e-
tendering solutions. 

Sustainable Procurement will be embedded into the procurement process with 
the adoption of a whole life costing approach to procurement activity. 

There are legislative restrictions which prevent the Council from showing 
favour to local businesses. The Strategy details how we will seek innovative 
solutions to increase the level of business that is awarded to local companies 

rd and the 3 sector. 

- 5 

Page 13



SECTION 1 

INTRODUCTION 

1.0 The importance of good procurement cannot be understated. The 
national profile of Public sector procurement has increased 
significantly in recent years and Local authorities are being 
encouraged to use procurement as a means to deliver financial and 
efficiency savings to release resources that can be utilised in the 
provision of services provided by the Council. There is a responsibility 
to ensure that there is a professional and consistent approach to the 
Councils commercial activity. 

1.1 Procurement activity can sometimes be fragmented and 
uncoordinated. This Strategy outlines how we will: 

• Increase opportunities to improve the overall cost effectiveness of 
Council services. 

• Ensure a consistent and coordinated approach to savings and 
efficiency. 

• Reduce overall procurement and transaction costs. 
• Increase capacity through partnerships and collaborations with other 

rd Public bodies, the private sector and the 3 sector. 
• Promote social, environmental and equality of opportunity benefits to 

the community and Council staff. 

1.2 The Council has a duty to secure Best value and continuous 
improvement from its expenditure whilst having regard to economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness. This Strategy details how the Council 
will achieve this. 

1.3 We will ensure that the latest procurement methodology and 
techniques are adopted throughout the Council through the 
establishment of a clear framework in which all procurement activity 
will take place and be measured against. 

1.4 Cheshire East Council has a Corporate vision to ‘work together to 
improve community life’. Key objectives have been established 
through the Corporate Plan to achieve this vision. 

1.5 Procurement within Cheshire East Council will be effective, efficient 
and will support the Council in achieving these objectives and 
obtaining best value. 

1.6 The Cheshire East Corporate Plan has been developed as an interim 
plan to set service direction for 2009/10 and allow Cheshire East to 
set the budget. 

- 6 

Page 14



1.7 This Procurement Strategy is intended to be a living document and as 
the plan for the period 2010/11 – 2012/13 is developed this Strategy 
will be updated to reflect the new Corporate objectives and priorities. 

Core Values and Behaviours 

1.8 Cheshire East Council has developed a set of core values and key 
behaviours. These are collected together as ASPIRE. Cheshire East 
Council Procurement will: 

rd 
• Take Action to engage with the Local economy and the 3 sector, 

implement e-procurement, sustainable procurement, category 
management and commissioning led procurement. 

• Support communication of our procurement opportunities. 
• People’s needs will be at the forefront of procurement activity. 
• Operate with Integrity in all our procurement activity ensuring that we 

are fair, open and transparent. 
• Give Recognition to the views of all stakeholders involved in 

rd procurement including Local suppliers and the 3 sector. 
• Adopt Excellent procurement practice that is modern, innovative, 

targeted and efficient. 

What is Procurement? 

1.9 Procurement is more than just buying or purchasing. It is the process 
of acquiring goods, works and services covering both the acquisition 
from third parties and from in-house providers. 

1.10 The process spans the whole life cycle from the identification of need 
through to the end of a services contract or the end of the useful life 
of an asset. 

1.11 It involves options appraisal and the critical ‘make or buy’ decision 
which may result in the provision of services in-house in certain 
circumstances. 

1.12 The procurement process aspires to achieve the best value solution. 
This is not necessarily the lowest cost but the optimum combination 
of whole life costs and benefits to meet the needs of the Council. 

1.13 Procurement decisions must be taken in the context of the broader 
objectives of the Council. 

What is a Corporate Procurement Strategy? 

1.14 The Council will spend a large proportion of its budget on the 
procurement and commissioning of goods, works and services. There 
is a responsibility to ensure that it achieves best value from this 

- 7 

Page 15



spend. This will release the maximum amount of resources to support 
the delivery of the objectives as detailed within the Corporate Plan. 

1.15 This Strategy is a mechanism for ensuring that procurement and 
commissioning within Cheshire East Council takes place in a 
controlled and structured manner that will support the Council vision 
and Corporate Plan. 

1.16 A Procurement Strategy provides a framework for individuals and 
Directorates to operate in and be measured against. 

1.17 This Strategy details the procurement vision, aims and objectives that 
are required for a flagship Council. 

1.18 The Strategy will seek to challenge procurement activity, raise the 
profile of procurement and drive improvements in procurement 
performance and deliver best value and contribute to the shaping of 
supply markets. 

Scope 

1.19 This Strategy is targeted at all internal and external stakeholders 
rd including employees, trade unions, the 3 sector, partner agencies, 

suppliers and potential suppliers. 

1.20 The principles of this Strategy are to be applied to ALL procurement 
activity that the Council undertakes. 

1.21 Consideration of this Strategy is not optional – it is mandatory. It is 
not intended to be a procurement manual nor does it attempt to 
prescribe in detail every action that should be undertaken in all 
procurement activity, however it does detail the approach and 
considerations that should be made when committing the Council to 
expenditure. It should be read in conjunction with the Financial 
Procedure Rules and the developing procurement guidance. 

National Drivers 

1.22 There have been numerous reviews of Local Government 
procurement activity all raising the profile of procurement and the 
contribution it can make to improve the delivery of Local authority 
services. 

National Procurement Strategy 

1.23 The National Procurement Strategy for Local Government published 
in 2003 built upon the previous reports such as that by Sir Ian Byatt, 
“Delivering Better Services to Citizens”, and detailed how central and 
local government, working together with partners from the public, 
private and voluntary sectors, can improve local government 

- 8 

Page 16



procurement. The Strategy set a series of clear objectives and targets 
(milestones). Those milestones were categorized under 4 themes: 

• Providing Leadership and building capacity: 
• Partnering and collaboration: 
• Doing business electronically: 
• Stimulating markets and achieving community benefits. 

Gershon Savings 

1.24 The report by Peter Gershon on Public sector Efficiency “Releasing 
Resources to the Frontline” set out a challenging agenda for better, 
more co-coordinated procurement and service delivery between 
public bodies, and overall savings in procurement costs. The Report 
which had significant influence on the Government’s Comprehensive 
Spending Reviews set tough targets for efficiency savings to be 
gained from improved procurement practices. 

1.25 The Local Government White Paper further indicates that pressures 
to achieve even greater savings and efficiencies will continue to 
increase; promoting greater collaboration across the public sector in 
procurement and shared services; the use of alternative methods of 
delivery and a diverse and competitive marketplace will be 
instrumental in the realisation of those savings. 

Sustainable Procurement Task Force (SPTF 2006) 

1.26 This was established in response to the UK Sustainable Development 
Strategy. The Task Force made recommendations to Government in 
June 2006, to improve the sustainability of Public Sector procurement 
to deliver social, environmental and economic benefits through local 
authority procurement activity. They identified a range of actions for 
public sector procurement including; 

• Developing the evidence base on sustainable procurement; 
identifying priority areas with specific targets and key performance 
indicators. 

• Extend the range of mandated products reaching minimum 
environmental standards. 

• Work with key public sector suppliers to raise sustainability 
awareness and performance. 

• Ensure that public sector employees receive appropriate training. 

• Remove barriers and increase opportunities for increased sustainable 
procurement activity. 

- 9 

Page 17



1.27 The Task Force also developed a flexible framework identifying 5 key 
themes of People, Policy, Strategy & Communications, Procurement 
Process, Engaging Suppliers and Measurement & Results. With the 
appropriate milestones to be achieved by Local authorities. 

North West Improvement and Efficiency Partnership 

1.28 The North West Improvement and Efficiency Partnership was 
established in response to the National Improvement and Efficiency 
Strategy to drive the region's ambitions for excellence through 
improvement and efficiency. 

1.29 The procurement programme will encourage savings to be achieved 
through collaborative procurement, both at a regional and sub­
regional level. A regional Procurement Strategy has been developed 
that forms the basis of the North West Improvement and Efficiency 
Partnership’s (NWIEP) Regional Procurement Action Plan for the 
CSR 07 period to support the 46 local authorities, plus the national 
park, in seeking to achieve regional savings. 

1.30 Each Sub-region is expected to establish its own Procurement Hub to 
facilitate the delivery of the efficiency agenda. 

Value for money 

1.31 The Government has set a challenge for the public sector: to build on 
the progress already made in enhancing value for money and further 
embed a culture of innovation. All public services have been set a 
target of achieving at least 3% net cash releasing value for money 
gains per annum over 2008/09 to 2010/11. 
2007 Com prehensive Spending Review 

1.32 The Government has stated that there is considerable potential from 
effective harnessing of efficiency and innovation techniques, such as 
smart procurement and service redesign. The reorganisation of local 
government in Cheshire creates a fantastic opportunity for change 
and the realisation of improvements and Cheshire East has the scale, 
capacity and commitment to deliver on this agenda. 

- 10 

Page 18



SECTION 2 

PROCUREMENT VISION AND OBJECTIVES 

2.1 Effective and transparent procurement has been increasingly 
promoted by central government and is a key factor in achieving 
increased efficiency and productivity. 

2.2 To be effective, procurement must be measured as much by the 
social and community benefits that result from its activity as by the 
financial and efficiency gains it delivers. 

2.3 Cheshire East Council has a Corporate vision to ‘work together to 
improve community life’ and has developed the Corporate objectives 
detailed below to deliver this vision. 

Corporate Objectives 
1 We will enable all children and young people to fulfil their potential. 
2 We will improve the wellbeing, health and care of people. 
3 We will ensure that people in local communities have a greater say about 

how resources are targeted in their area 
4 We will work with others to make all of our communities safer places to 

live, work and play 
5 We will enable people to have a good quality of life irrespective of where 

they live or their social or economic background. 
6 We will shape and maintain strong and prosperous neighbourhoods in 

which our residents are skilled and economically active, where businesses 
want to invest and where people want to visit. 

7 We will provide an attractive and sustainable environment which 
communities can be proud of. 

2.4 Cheshire East Council aspires to become a flagship authority. In 
order to support this aspiration and to support the delivery of these 
Corporate objectives Cheshire East Council will adopt the following 
Procurement vision and objectives. 

Procurement vision 

To adopt excellent procurement practice that is modern, innovative, 
targeted and efficient that will release the maximum amount of 
resources for Cheshire East Council and support the delivery of the 
Corporate vision and plan. 

- 11 

Page 19



Procurement Objectives 

1 All procurement activity undertaken by Cheshire East Council will be fair, 
legal, ethical and transparent. 

2 Procurement activity will seek to support the local economy with a mixed 
economy of service provision including SME’s and the 3rd sector 
encouraging local sourcing and local employment wherever possible. 

3 Cheshire East Council will develop specifications and evaluation 
processes that support social, environmental and community benefits by 
the development and adoption of appropriate specifications and 
evaluation processes. 

4 Cheshire East Council will seek to undertake Procurement and 
Commissioning in partnership with other Public sector Organisations 
were this is beneficial to the community. 

5 Cheshire East Council will seek to adopt the latest e-procurement 
solutions to contribute to the maximisation of efficient procurement 
processes. 

6 Sustainable Procurement will be embedded into the procurement cycle to 
realise wider social, environmental and economic objectives. 

7 Cheshire East Council will contribute to the Council savings targets by 
continually challenge the procurement activity and practices through the 
development of an efficiency plan. 

8 All staff involved in procurement and commissioning activity will have the 
appropriate skills and competencies to carry out the activity. 

9 All Procurement will be strategically managed by a team of professionally 
qualified staff. 

10 Cheshire East Council shall seek to ensure compliance with the 
Corporate Procurement Strategy through formal performance 
management and measurement. 

- 12 

Page 20



SECTION 3 

DELIVERY OF THE STRATEGY 

Organisational Structure of Procure ment 

Portfolio holder Assets, Shared Services and Procurement 

3.1 Cheshire East Council has a cabinet member with a Portfolio 
responsibility that includes Procurement. The role is to be an 
advocate or spokesperson on procurement matters to encourage 
communication and a positive interaction. 

Procurement Board 

3.2 A Procurement Board comprising of the Borough Treasurer and Head 
of Assets, Procurement Manager, Borough Solicitor and 
representatives of the People and Places Directorates will be 
established. Project sponsors will be co-opted to the board as and 
when necessary. 

3.3 The Boards’ prime responsibility will be to oversee the 
implementation of this Strategy and steer its future direction. 

3.4 In order to achieve this function the Board will: 

• Support the development of the Procurement Strategy. 
• Monitor the implementation of the Strategy. 
• Monitor levels of compliance. 
• Contribute to the development and implementation of major 

strategic partnerships. 
• Support the introduction of gateway reviews for all projects over 

£500,000 
• Oversee the establishment and achievement of procurement 

efficiency targets. 
• Accept reports from Officers and make decisions relating to 

Council wide procurement. 

3.5 The Procurement Board will meet quarterly. 

Corporate Procurement Unit 

3.6 The Unit will act as a centre of procurement excellence providing 
advice and guidance and be a corporate resource to all services. The 
Corporate Procurement Unit will not be a central buying unit. 

3.7 Cheshire East Council will operate a devolved structure of 
procurement with each service responsible for leading their own 

- 13 

Page 21



procurement activity to meet their specific needs. As a result most of 
the transactional elements of purchasing are devolved to the relevant 
service area. 

3.8 The team will have a targeted approach to its activities to those areas 
where the need is greatest and where there are the maximum 
opportunities for efficiencies and savings that will ensure the release 
of resources. The Unit will however, influence ALL procurement 
activity to a greater or lesser degree. It will lead on letting corporate 
contracts whilst supporting officers from all service areas to procure 
within a clear corporate framework. 

Procurement Coordinators 

3.9 Each service will have a nominated Procurement Coordinator who 
will be informed of new corporate contracts and developments within 
procurement and act as the coordinator of all strategic procurement 
activity and communication within that service. 

3.10 Cheshire East Council will act as one organisation in the planning 
and buying of goods works and services. A key role of the Corporate 
Procurement Unit will be to ensure that this is a view shared by the 
whole Council in order to maximise the benefits of a strategic 
approach to procurement. 

3.11 Service plans will be expected to include details of the proposed 
future procurement activity. The Unit will use this detail to inform the 
procurement plan. This will ensure that procurement is able to be 
undertaken in a structured manner and that there are adequate 
resources, targeted at the appropriate areas. 

Cheshire and Warrington Sub Regional Procurement Hub 

3.12 Cheshire East Council proposes to lead the Cheshire and Warrington 
Sub Regional Procurement Hub The partners to the hub include 
Cheshire West and Chester, Warrington BC and Cheshire Fire and 
Rescue service. 

3.13 The aim of the Hub is to examine procurement across the Sub 
Region to determine areas of procurement where a collaborative 
approach can drive down prices, improve services, improve supplier 
engagement, encourage SMEs and Third Sector organisations to 
trade with local government and lead in areas of diversity and 
sustainability. 

3.14 Objectives include: 
• To Identify and implement opportunities to increase efficiency through 

smarter procurement and maximise value for money across Cheshire 
East, Chester West and Chester, Warrington and the sub region. 

- 14 

Page 22



• To Identify and implement the opportunity for strategic procurement 
and shared services with other agencies where it will add value to 
services in terms of quality and efficiency. 

• Development of a benefits realisation policy to monitor efficiency 
savings and the release of resources. 

3.15 The Hub will give consideration to the following 

• Contract Procedure Rules/Standing Orders/Terms and Conditions. 

• E-procurement. 

• Strategic, operational and transactional procurement. 

• Contractual opportunities both existing and new to address 
efficiencies. 

• Shared service provision for the two Cheshire authorities and joint 
working initiatives with partners. 

• Structured engagement with the relevant stakeholders including the 
rd 3 sector. 

• National, Regional and Corporate Procurement Strategies and 
initiatives. 

• All operational aspects of the Procurement Hub. 

• The development of a Hub procurement work plan referenced to the 
member procurement work plans. 

• The development of a procurement action plan that will develop 
procurement capacity. 

Procurement planning 

3.16 The Corporate Procurement Unit will develop a three year 
procurement plan to include all future proposed procurement 
exercises in the Directorates. 

3.17 The plan will be initially developed from Service Plans and knowledge 
of contracts due for renewal. It will then be continuously updated to 
reflect a current picture of the Councils anticipated procurement 
activity. This plan will be a living document and be published and 
freely available. 

3.18 The Corporate Procurement Unit will ensure early engagement with 
internal customers, suppliers (both current and potential), to asses 
the needs and understand the market and the most appropriate 
procurement plan with needs analysis. 

- 15 

Page 23



PROCUREM ENT PRINCIPLES AND ACTION 

3.19 The Corporate Procurement Unit will develop a Procurement Action 
Plan that will detail the priority actions required to deliver the Strategy 
and the Procurement Objectives. This will be referenced to the 
business plan of the Sub Regional Procurement Hub. 

3.20 The Unit will adopt a strategic approach to managing procurement 
using strategic procurement tools that will aid decision making and 
support the efforts of commissioners. These strategic tools will 
include: 

• Spend analysis 
• Category Management 
• Supplier Relationship Management 
• Commissioning lead procurement 

Spend analysis 

3.21 Spend analysis is a powerful and invaluable tool for identifying and 
manipulating detailed spend data by, for example, category, supplier 
and area and combinations/permutations of these. It will identify key 
suppliers, key spend areas and how many suppliers may be 
delivering the same goods and services. 

3.22 This information is the key foundation for other strategic procurement 
decisions such as Category Management, Supplier Relationship 
Management and the Procurement Strategy. It forms an important 
part of resource mapping and planning as it will allow the Council and 
their commissioning partners to identify where financial resources are 
being allocated currently and commitments in the future. We will seek 
to undertake a spend analysis. 

Category Management 

3.23 Cheshire East Council will operate a strategic Category Management 
approach to its procurement activity where procurement will be based 
upon achieving desired outcomes. 

3.24 Category Management is a process of identifying categories of goods 
or services and managing these as business units so that value for 
money is maximised. It comprises a wide number of tools and 
techniques including Portfolio analysis. 

3.25 Portfolio analysis allows procurements to be mapped against a 
cost/risk matrix (see diagram). It highlights categories where a more 
hands-on style of management may be appropriate (the 
Strategic/Critical quadrant in particular) and where it will be in the 

- 16 

Page 24



Cr
it
ic
al
ity
/
R
is
k/

M
ar
ke
t
d
iff
ic
ul
ty

interests of the Council to build relationships with providers. It will 
also identify categories most suitable for automated, streamlined 
management through the use of frameworks or e-catalogues for 
example (the acquisition/routine quadrant in particular). 

Portfolio analysis (Kraljic Matrix)

High

Critical /Bottle neck Strategic /Critical

Acquisition/ Routine Leverage

Low

Low Spend/Cost Impact High

3.26 Activity will focus on key spend areas targeting resources where they 
are most effective. 

3.27 Procurement solutions will be different for each category of spend. 
These will vary from national collaborative solutions to local ones to 
ensure a mixed economy of service provision. 

3.28 Category strategies and action plans will be developed that will 
clearly identify, how, when and where efficiency savings are going to 
be delivered. The plans will give consideration to: 

• An appraisal of the supply base to determine the level of competition 
within the marketplace. 

• An appraisal of the contract landscape both within the Council and 
outside to determine the suitability of collaboration with potential 
partners at a sub regional, regional and National level. 

3.29 Cross Council teams will be developed that will be led by the 
category managers. The teams will include the procurement 
coordinators from various services. This will ensure that procurement 
has a broader role as a centre of commercial expertise and a 
strategic partner in service delivery capable of developing innovative 
solutions. 

3.30 Category managers will work together with procurement coordinators 
to ensure compliance with procedures and corporate contracts to 
ensure value for money and management of risk through the 
avoidance of off contract expenditure. 

Supplier Relationship Management (SRM) 

- 17 

Page 25



3.31 Supplier Relationship Management is an important element of 
Category Management. It is an ongoing activity that will be applied to 
all current, significant suppliers. 

3.32 SRM recognises that different relationships will be required with 
different suppliers/providers. The type of relationship will depend 
largely on the criticality and/or value of the goods or services they 
supply, and factors such as the number of suppliers in the market, 
and the global availability of a requirement. 

3.33 SRM will allow the development of strategies for dealing with 
suppliers to achieve ongoing value for money, and reduce the risk of 
poor performance or non-delivery or non-availability. It allows the 
Procurement Unit to focus effort on the right suppliers and ensure 
that the supplier is not managing us. 

3.34 For many suppliers, it will not be necessary to expend significant 
resources building a relationship, and an operational-type 
management style will be sufficient, but for others it may be 
necessary to enter into full relationship management. This will not be 
a ‘cosy’ option – it will require a drive for continuous improvement and 
ongoing communication management, cost management and 
benchmarking. 

3.35 The success of this approach will depend on the buy-in from 
suppliers and we will have to determine how they value our 
business. Supplier preferencing will assist with this and is based on 
the matrix below. 

Supplier perception of clients

High 

Develop Core

Nuisance Exploit

Low

Low Customer Spend High

Commissioning led Procurement 

3.36 Cheshire East Council will adopt a strategic Commissioning led 
approach to procurement. 

3.37 Commissioning can be defined as “The Strategic Activity of assessing 
needs, resources and current services and developing a Strategy to 
make best use of (available) resources” 

A
tt
ra
ct
iv
en

es
s
of

A
cc
ou

nt

- 18 

Page 26



3.38 This is about ensuring the needs of the users or the business needs 
are predominant in the commissioning and procurement process. 
This ensures that the emerging needs, best practice, market analysis 
and available resources are taken into full account when developing 
procurement plans and strategies. It further ensures historical 
provision patterns (including in-house) do not unduly distort future 
purchasing decisions. 

3.39 The diagram below details a typical commissioning and procurement 
cycle. It must be noted that commissioning activity drives the 
procurement activity. 

© Crown Copyright, 2008 
(DCLG Needs analysis, Commissioning and procurement for housing related support) 

Efficienc y Savings Plan 

3.40 The Corporate Procurement Unit will develop an annual procurement 
efficiency savings plan that is informed by the category management 
plans. 

3.41 This plan will identify the areas of spend that the Unit will target, 
benchmark the current position and detail the anticipated savings. 

- 19 

Page 27



3.42 The plan will apply consistency to the approaches to definition, 
approval and reporting of savings by the Council and the Sub 
Regional Hub. 

Collaboration 

3.43 We will seek to collaborate on procurement activities at the widest 
possible level, both internally with services and externally with other 
Public sector organisations mainly through the Sub Regional 
Procurement Hub. 

3.44 Benefits will include: 
• Improved value for money due to economies of scale 
• Greater leverage in the market and greater provider loyalty 
• Access to resources and ideas from others working in the same 

environment 
• Sharing of the procurement burden. 

3.45 Collaboration will be eased by: 
• Working with organisations which enable collaboration such as the 

North West Improvement and Efficiency Partnerships, Office of 
Government Commerce Buying Solutions and other Councils through 
the Sub Regional Procurement Hub who may already have a contract 
in place 

• The pooling of procurement resource and/or budgets 
• Clear supportive statements in Commission Strategies, Procurement 

Strategies etc and senior management commitment 
• Written agreements with partners on the split of roles and 

responsibilities, or Service Level Agreements if necessary 
• Involving partners in the requirement, development and evaluation 

processes 

Contract Management and the control of contracts 

3.46 All contracts over £50K in contract value will be detailed in the 
contracts register and any renewal requirements reflected in the 
procurement plan. 

3.47 Contract management is an integral part of procurement. We will 
ensure that all contracts are adequately managed and monitored to 
ensure completion of service delivery on time, within budget and in 
accordance with the specification. 

3.48 As a minimum, for contracts at £100,000 or over, we will allocate 
clear responsibility for contract management, schedule regular 
contract review meetings (where appropriate), monitor current 
performance and performance trends and know the level of mutual 
business dependency. 

E- Procurement 

- 20 

Page 28



3.49 E-Procurement is the use of electronic tools and systems to increase 
efficiency and reduce costs during each stage of the procurement 
process. 

3.50 The Council will look to embrace this technology where there are 
demonstrable benefits to the Council. This will include: 

• Continuing the development of electronic internal procurement 
processes and procedures 

• Increased use of on line market catalogues 
• Introduce the use of Tender and Contract management software for 

the quotation and full tender process including e-tendering 
• Advertising all tender opportunities on an on line regional portal 
• Increase the use of purchase cards for low value purchases where 

appropriate. 
• Financial evaluation of suppliers, through use of an electronic on line 

system, 

Sustainable Procurement 

3.51 Sustainable Procurement is about the optimum combination of 
environmental, social and economic considerations. The 
Procurement Unit will develop a sustainable procurement policy that 
will seek to address the following: 

• The introduction of a whole life costing approach to procurement 
activity rather than the purchase price. 

• The inclusion of environmental and social considerations into the 
specifications and evaluation criteria where this is appropriate and 
legal to do so. 

• Developing the evidence base on sustainable procurement; 
Identifying priority areas with specific targets and key performance 
indicators. 

• Introduction of a range of mandated products reaching minimum 
environmental standards. 

• Work with key public sector suppliers to raise sustainability 
awareness and performance. 

• Ensure that officers involved in procurement activity receive 
appropriate training. 

• Remove barriers and increase opportunities for increased sustainable 
procurement activity. 

• We will seek to undertake disposals in the most cost effective manner 
having due regard for the wider environmental considerations. 

3.52 In addition we will seek to achieve the appropriate level and 
milestones detailed within the flexible framework introduced by the 
Sustainable Procurement Task Force around the 5 key themes of 

- 21 

Page 29



People, Policy, Strategy & Communications, Procurement Process, 
Engaging Suppliers and Measurement & Results. 

rd Local Econom y and 3 sector 

3.53 All procurement activity that the Council undertakes is subject to strict 
Public sector procurement legislation. This prevents the Council from 
showing favour to local businesses. 

3.54 The Council has one of the largest spends in the area and recognises 
the impact that this can have on the local economy. As such we will 
seek to increase the level of business that is awarded to local 

rd companies and 3 sector organisations. 

rd 
• We will engage with local businesses and the 3 sector to explain 

how to obtain Council business. 
• We will publish long term procurement plans. 
• We will make the procurement process simple, fair and transparent. 
• All tender opportunities will be advertised on a regional portal. 
• We will manage procurement professionally and strategically. 
• We will encourage good practice between prime and sub-contractors. 
• We will use standard documentation wherever possible including a 

Council wide pre-qualification questionnaire containing common core 
questions with limited bespoke additions for each contract. 

• Where possible we will package requirements in a manner that does 
not preclude Local and regional companies, SME’s and social 
enterprises from tendering. 

Equality and Diversity 

3.55 The Council has a duty to ensure that its expenditure does not lead to 
unlawful discrimination and social exclusion. 

3.56 We will use all the powers available, including the provisions of the 
Local Government Act 1988, the Transfer of Undertakings ­
Protection of Employment Regulations (TUPE) 1981, the Race 
Relations Act 1976 (Amended 2000), the Disability Discrimination Act 
1995, the Sex Discrimination Act 1975 and the Code of Practice on 
Workforce Matters in Local Council Service Contracts to ensure that 
equalities issues are addressed in the procurement of goods, works 
and services. 

Leadership 

3.57 The Unit will act as a centre of excellence and expertise on 
procurement. It will forge close relationships with the services 
becoming aware of their outcome requirements and supporting their 
delivery. 

- 22 

Page 30



Skills and capability 

3.58 The unit will seek to develop a training solution to ensure that all 
officers involved in procurement activity have the appropriate skills to 
the activity undertaken. We will look to deliver this through an e-
learning package that will be modular in design. 

Performance Management and Measurement 

3.59 Procurement will be subject to a series of performance measures. 
The performance of the procurement function will influence a number 
of National indicators and ultimately our Comprehensive Area 
Assessment review. 

3.60 The performance of Procurement within Cheshire East Council will 
make a significant contribution to the managing resources score 
within the Comprehensive Area Assessment review. This strategy 
details how procurement activity will support the four underpinning 
concepts of sustainable development, equality, diversity and human 
rights, vulnerable people and value for money. 

3.60 The wider procurement activity is subject to a number of milestone 
achievements in respect of e-procurement and sustainability against 
which our performance will be measured. 

3.61 The Procurement Unit will develop a series of internal performance 
measures which will be reported upon accordingly and be used to 
measure performance outcomes. 

3.62 We will manage performance by: 
• Ensuring that specifications have measurable outcomes. 
• Producing a procurement plan to enable a coordinated, structured 

approach to the procurement with adequate resources and 
opportunity for challenge. 

• Ensuring that there is adequate contract management at the 
appropriate level. 

• Undertake risk analysis and management of the procurement process 
including gateway reviews on high value / high risk procurements. 

Code of Conduct for Procurement 

3.63 All procurement activity must be undertaken to the highest standards 
of ethics and probity. The Council insists on ethical standards from its 
suppliers, and in turn it must exhibit the highest ethical standards 
itself. Officers and members must not only be fair and above board in 
all business dealings, but should also avoid any conduct that is 
capable of having an adverse interpretation put on it. 

- 23 

Page 31



Contact details 

3.64 Any queries relating to this strategy should be directed to: 

David Wharton, 
Procurement manager, 
Cheshire East Council 
Westfields, 
Middlewich Road, 
Sandbach, 
Cheshire 
CW11 1HZ 

Email David.Wharton@Cheshireeast.gov.uk

- 24 

Page 32



Version 1 April 2009 (SH) 

.CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO:  CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date of Meeting: 

 
4 October 2011 

Report of: Borough Solicitor 
Subject/Title: Work Programme update 
___________________________________                                                                       
 
 
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 To review items in the 2011/2012 Work Programme listed in the schedule 

attached, together with any other items suggested by Committee Members. 
 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
 That the 2011/2012 work programme be reviewed. 
 
3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 It is good practice to agree and review the Work Programme to enable effective  
          management of the Committee’s business. 
 
4.0 Wards Affected 
 
4.1 All 
 
5.0 Local Ward Members  
 
5.1 Not applicable. 
 
6.0 Policy Implications including - Carbon reduction  
                                                              - Health 
 
 
6.1 Not known at this stage. 
 
 
7.0 Financial Implications  
 
7.1 Not known at this stage. 
 
8.0 Legal Implications  
 
8.1 None. 
 
9.0 Risk Management  

Agenda Item 6Page 33



Version 1 April 2009 (SH) 

 
9.1 There are no identifiable risks. 
 
10.0 Background and Options 
 
10.1 The current work plan has been amended since the previous meeting of the 

Committee by the deletion of the item relating to Local Highways and 
Transport/liaison Committees. The Chairman and Vice Chairman of the 
Committee will be meeting the portfolio holders for Resources and Procurement 
and Shared Assets after the publication of this agenda, and any potential items 
for inclusion in the work programme emanating from those meetings will be 
reported orally at the meeting. 

 
10.4 When selecting potential topics, Members must have regard to the Corporate 

Plan and Sustainable Community Strategy – ‘Ambition for all’ and also to the 
general criteria which should be applied to all potential items when considering 
whether any Scrutiny activity is appropriate. Matters should be assessed 
against the following criteria: 

 
• Does the issue fall within a corporate priority; 

 
• Is the issue of key interest to the public; 

 
• Does the matter relate to a poor or declining performing service for 

which there is no obvious explanation;  
 

• Is there a pattern of budgetary overspends;  
 

• Is it a matter raised by external audit management letters and or audit 
reports? 

 
• Is there a high level of dissatisfaction with the service; 

 
10.5 If during the assessment process any of the following emerge, then 

the topic should be rejected: 
 

• The topic is already being addressed elsewhere 
 

• The matter is subjudice 
 

• Scrutiny cannot add value or is unlikely to be able to conclude an 
investigation within the specified timescale 

 
•  

 
 
11 Access to Information 
 

                           The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting  

Page 34



Version 1 April 2009 (SH) 

                           the report writer: 
 
 
 
 
 Name:           Mark Nedderman 
 Designation: Senior Scrutiny Officer 

           Tel No:         01270 686459 
            Email:         mark.nedderman@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

  

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee/Corporate/meetings/ /workprogramme September 2011 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme October 2011      
 

Issue Description/Comments Suggested 
by 

Portfolio 
Holder as at 
October 2011 

Corporate 
Priority 

Current 
Position 
R,A,G 

Date for 
completion 

Budget Consultation group set up to 
review consultation 
arrangements for 
2011/2012. 

Committee Resources Nurture Strong 
Communities 

Next meeting 27 
October 2011. 

Start date 
July 2011 and 
ongoing 

Business 
Generation 
Centres 

Review the formal response 
of Cabinet and subsequent 
actions 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Prosperity Create 
Conditions for 
Business 
growth 

Formal 
Cabinet 
response 
expected in 
November 
2011 

6 March 2012 

Mayoralty/Civic 
arrangements in 
Cheshire East 

Review procedures and 
support for the mayoralty 
and arrangements for civic 
duties.  

Portfolio 
Holder  

Resources Nurture Strong 
Communities 

To be 
prioritised 

TBA 

Procurement To review procurement 
arrangements in Cheshire to 
ensure that the Council is 
achieving best value. 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Procurement and 
Shared Services 

Nurture Strong 
Communities 

Item on 
today’s 
agenda. 

4 October 
2011 

Shared Services Of the original 28 shared 
services, 11 have been 
disaggregated, and 5 are in 
transitional stage. The 
committee to receive a 
position statement on the 
current shared services 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Procurement and 
Shared Services 

Nurture Strong 
Communities 

New item to 
be prioritised. 

TBA 

P
age 37



Committee/Corporate/meetings/ /workprogramme September 2011 

arrangements and on 
proposals to set up 
Separate Legal 
entities(SLE’s) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

P
age 38



 
FORWARD PLAN 1 OCTOBER 2011 - 31 JANUARY 2012 

 
This Plan sets out the key decisions which the Executive expect to take over the next four months. 
The Plan is rolled forward every month. It will next be published in mid October and will then 
contain all key decisions expected to be taken between 1 November and 29 February 2012.  Key 
decisions are defined in the Councils Constitution. 
 
Reports relevant to key decisions, and any listed background documents may be viewed at any of 
the Councils Offices/Information Centres 6 days before the decision is to be made.  Copies of, or 
extracts from these documents may be obtained on the payment of a reasonable fee from the 
following address:- 
 
Democratic Services Team 
Cheshire East Council , 
c/o Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach Cheshire CW11 1HZ 
Telephone:  01270 686463 
 
However, it is not possible to make available for viewing or to supply copies of reports or 
documents, the publication of which is restricted due to confidentiality of the information contained. 
 
A decision notice for each key decision is published within 6 days of it having been made.  This is 
open for public inspection on the Council's Website, Council Information Centres and Council 
Offices. 
 
The law and the Council's Constitution provides for urgent key decisions to be made.  A decision 
notice will be published for these in exactly the same way. 
 
 

Agenda Item 7Page 39



 
Forward Plan 1 October 2011 to 31 January 2012 

 

Key Decision Decisions to be Taken Decision 
Maker 

Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Relevant 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

How to make 
representation to 
the decision made 

CE10/11-62 
Transfer and 
Devolution of 
Services and 
Functions to 
Town and 
Parish 
Councils 

To receive an update on the 
project and to approve any 
points of negotiation reached. 

Cabinet 5 Sep 2011 With Town and Parish 
Councils, local ward 
members, staff and 
unions. 
 
 

Sustainable 
Communities 

John Nicholson, 
Strategic Director 
(Places and 
Organisational 
Capacity) 
 

CE11/12-3 
Cheshire and 
Warrington 
Local 
Investment 
Plan 2 

To approve the draft Local 
Investment Plan 2 for Cheshire 
and Warrington prior to its 
submission to the Cheshire and 
Warrington Leaders Board. 

Cabinet 5 Sep 2011 With regional partners 
(formally known as 
housing associations) 
by presentations and 
circulation to interested 
parties. 
 
 

Environment and 
Prosperity 5 July 
2011 

John Nicholson, 
Strategic Director 
(Places and 
Organisational 
Capacity) 
 

CE11/12-10 
Improvements 
in the Delivery 
of Adult Social 
Care Services 
- Building 
Based Review 

With the growing personalisation 
of care budgets, to consider a 
range of options to maintain 
services to those with social care 
needs whilst reducing the 
associated building related 
costs. 

Cabinet 5 Sep 2011 With service uses, their 
carers and the wider 
community. 
 
 

Adult Social Care Lorraine Butcher, 
Strategic Director ( 
Children, Families 
and Adults) 
 

P
age 40



 
 
Key Decision Decisions to be Taken Decision 

Maker 
Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Relevant 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

How to make 
representation to 
the decision made 

CE11/12-17 
Carers 
Strategy and 
Implementation 
Plan 

To endorse the strategy and 
implementation plan for resident 
carers and their families. 

Cabinet 3 Oct 2011 Already carried out 
with carers and the 
Carers Reference 
Group. 
 
 

Adult Social Care; 
Children and 
Families 

Lorraine Butcher, 
Strategic Director ( 
Children, Families 
and Adults) 
 

CE11/12-16 
Congleton 
Town Centre - 
Bridestones 
Extension 
Scheme 

To give authorisation to proceed 
on with the scheme, to move the 
project into the delivery phase 
and to commence work on the 
site. 

Cabinet 31 Oct 2011  
 
 

Environment and 
Prosperity 

John Nicholson, 
Strategic Director 
(Places and 
Organisational 
Capacity) 
 

CE11/12-19 
Connexions 
Cheshire and 
Warrington 

To approve the future 
governance arrangements. 

Cabinet 31 Oct 2011  
 
 

Children and 
Families 

Lorraine Butcher, 
Strategic Director ( 
Children, Families 
and Adults) 
 

CE10/11-49/1 
Future 
Operation 
Knutsford 
Cinema 

To decide on the future running 
and preferred operating model. 

Cabinet 28 Nov 2011 Local community 
groups and Knutsford 
Town Council. 
 
 

Corporate Guy Kilminster, 
Head of Health and 
Wellbeing Services 
 

P
age 41



 
 
Key Decision Decisions to be Taken Decision 

Maker 
Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Relevant 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

How to make 
representation to 
the decision made 

CE10/11-89 
Cheshire East 
Housing 
Strategy 

To adopt the Local Housing 
Strategy, a key document which 
articulates the housing vision for 
Cheshire East, setting out the 
housing priorities and way in 
which they will be delivered. 

Cabinet 28 Nov 2011 With stakeholders, 
partners, general 
public during the 
development of the 
Strategy; the Draft 
Strategy will also be 
consulted upon. 
 
 

Prosperity John Nicholson, 
Strategic Director 
(Places and 
Organisational 
Capacity) 
 

CE11/12-18 
Temporary 
Agency Staff 
Contract 

To approve the award of this 
contract as a joint arrangement 
with Cheshire West and Chester 
Council.  

Cabinet 5 Dec 2011 Supplier Briefing. 
 
 

Corporate Paul Bradshaw, 
Head of HR and 
Organisational 
Development 
 

CE10/11-69 
Libraries 
Services 
Strategy 
Development 

To determine the approach to 
the delivery of library services. 

Cabinet 9 Jan 2012 Staff, customers, Ward 
Members, Town and 
Parish Councils by 
means of meetings, 
notices and briefings. 
 
 

Corporate 
Scrutiny 1 
February 2011 

Guy Kilminster, 
Head of Health and 
Wellbeing Services 
 

CE10/11-49/2 
Future 
Operation of 
Crewe Lyceum 
Theatre 

To decide on the future running 
and preferred operating model. 

Cabinet 6 Feb 2012 Voice for Crewe, local 
community groups, 
Crewe Charter 
Trustees, 
 
 

Corporate Guy Kilminster, 
Head of Health and 
Wellbeing Services 
 

P
age 42



 
 
Key Decision Decisions to be Taken Decision 

Maker 
Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Relevant 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

How to make 
representation to 
the decision made 

CE11/12-4 
Business 
Planning 
Process 
2012/2015 - 
Business Plan 

To approve the Business Plan 
for 2012/2015 incorporating 
updated budget and policy 
proposals together with the 
Capital Programme. 

Cabinet, 
Council 

6 Feb 2012 With all Members and 
a range of local 
stakeholders including 
PCT’s, Parish 
Councils, social care 
representatives, 
businesses, trades 
unions, the schools 
forum and the public. 
 
 

To be determined 
but expected to 
be a scrutiny 
budget 
consultation 
group. 

Lisa Quinn, Director 
of Finance and 
Business Services 
 

P
age 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	5 Procurement update
	Yc-CE-ProcurementStrategy[1]

	6 Work Programme Progress Report
	Work programme Oct 2011

	7 Forward Plan - Extracts

